
 

Meeting contact Charlotte Lynch or email charlotte.lynch@southribble.gov.uk 

 

SCRUTINY BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE PANEL 
MONDAY, 14TH SEPTEMBER, 2020, 5.00 PM 
 
ACCESSIBLE VIA MS TEAMS AND YOUTUBE 
 

AGENDA 
 

 IMPORTANT INFORMATION 
 

 

 In response to the current government guidance surrounding 
the COVID-19 pandemic, this meeting will be held remotely 
via Microsoft Teams. 
 
Any elected member not on the committee or member of the 
public may watch the proceedings via a YouTube livestream 
which can be accessed by clicking here.  
 
If you wish to speak on an item contained within this agenda 
please register by email to 
mailto:democraticservices@southribble.gov.ukfor the attention 
of Charlotte Lynch by noon on Thursday, 10 September.  
Registered speakers will be required to dial into the meeting 
remotely.  
 

 

1 Apologies  

2 Declarations of Interest  

3 Minutes of meeting Monday, 3 August 2020 of Scrutiny 
Budget and Performance Panel 

(Pages 3 - 6) 

 To be signed as a correct record.   

4 Matters Arising from Previous Meetings (To Follow) 

 Report to follow.   

5 Period 1 (April - June) Quarterly Performance Monitoring 
Report 2020/21 

(Pages 7 - 32) 

 Report of the Interim Chief Executive attached.  

6 South Ribble Corporate Stategy (To Follow) 

 Report of the Interim Chief Executive to follow.  
 
 

 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCOJrEnzUjFER9VYxT6Q_VpA/live
mailto:democraticservices@southribble.gov.uk


 

7 Budget Monitoring 2020-21 Quarter 1 (To Follow) 

 Report of the Section 151 Officer to follow.  

 
 
Gary Hall 
INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
Electronic agendas sent to Members of the Scrutiny Budget and Performance Panel 
Councillors David Howarth (Chair), Will Adams, Colin Coulton, Colin Sharples and 
Karen Walton 
 
The minutes of this meeting will be available on the internet at 
www.southribble.gov.uk 
 
Forthcoming Meetings 
5.00 pm Monday, 9 November 2020 - Paddock Room, Civic Centre, West Paddock, 
Leyland, PR25 1DH 
 

http://www.southribble.gov.uk/


 

 
Scrutiny Budget and Performance Panel Monday 3 August 2020 

 

 
MINUTES OF 
 

SCRUTINY BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE PANEL 

MEETING DATE 
 

Monday, 3 August 2020 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Councillors David Howarth (Chair) and Colin Coulton 
 

CABINET MEMBERS: Councillor Paul Foster (Leader of the Council) and Matthew 
Tomlinson (Cabinet Member for Finance, Property & Assets) 
 

 

OFFICERS: Darren Cranshaw (Assistant Director of Scrutiny & Democratic 
Services), James Thomson (Deputy Director of Finance) and 
Victoria Willett (Service Lead - Transformation and 
Partnerships) 
 

OTHER MEMBERS: Councillors Margaret Smith and Phil Smith 
 

PUBLIC: 0 
 

9 Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies were received from Councillors Will Adams, Colin Sharples and Karen 
Walton. 
 

10 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were none.  
 

11 Minutes of the meeting held on Monday, 22 June 2020 of Scrutiny Budget 
and Performance Panel 
 
RESOLVED:  (Unanimously) 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on Monday, 22 June 2020 be agreed as a 
correct record. 
 

12 Minutes of the meeting held on Thursday, 2 July 2020 of Scrutiny Budget 
and Performance Panel 
 
RESOLVED:  (Unanimously) 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on Thursday, 2 July 2020 be agreed as a 
correct record. 
 

13 Budget Outturn 2019-20 
 
The Cabinet Member for Finance, Property and Assets presented a report of the 
Deputy Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) on the budget outturn for 2019-
2020. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



2 

 

 
Scrutiny Budget and Performance Panel Monday 3 August 2020 

 

The report outlined the Council’s overall financial position at the end of the financial 
year on 31 March 2020, which would be considered at Cabinet on Wednesday, 5 
August 2020.  The overall revenue outturn was a net budget surplus of £1,400,000.  
This included a £270,000 surplus ring-fenced income and £166,000 relating to 
budget that will be utilised in 2020/2021, leaving a net surplus of £964,000.   This 
surplus would be used to increase earmarked reserves.   
 
Reference was made to the impact of COVID-19 and business rates, which were 
difficult to predict, but there was confidence that the Council had healthy reserves to 
deal with future challenges. 
 
The Panel raised the following queries/comments, which the Cabinet Member and 
Deputy Director of Finances responded to: 
 
 With regards the overall budget surplus, it was felt that the variances were 

relatively small overall and that the bulk had come from business rate income, 

which was difficult to assess due to the complex formula involved. 

 
 In response to a question as to whether the council tax increase for this year was 

required, the position at the time identified that the budget was required and 

appropriate.  There were now risks and challenges facing the Council with 

regards COVID-19 and business rate collection.   

 
 Reference was made to the surplus green waste income, which had generated 

more income than envisaged.  However, based on experiences elsewhere it was 

not expected to continue to increase greatly. 

 
 Following a query about the Leisure Campus abortive project costs, clarification 

was provided that the costs were part of a long-term project by the previous 

administration.  Following a review it was felt that the costs of the Leisure 

Campus were not affordable to the Council.  Some of the costs might be useful 

for future projects, but some of the preparatory costs would not be and therefore 

had to be written-off.  

 
 The reduction in relation to income from the Trade Waste Service was 

mentioned, which was a competitive market.  Further information would be 

provided to the Panel on the reduction. 

 
 With regards the increase in the provision for bad debt, Members were advised 

that there was a modest increase in provision, which is based on a formula that 

looked at age of debts etc. 

 
 In response to a question around staffing costs and whether the Council had the 

capacity to deliver our services and the corporate plan, re-assurance was 

provided that this was in place.  The corporate strategy was being re-freshed and 

the Chief Executive was looking at ensuring the resources were in the right place 

to deliver the strategy. 

Page 4



3 

 

 
Scrutiny Budget and Performance Panel Monday 3 August 2020 

 

 
 Re-assurance was provided that the current 3 vacancies in Gateway were being 

recruited to and were not impacting on the level of service provided by the team.  

The Panel requested further information on the staffing vacancies in the Gateway 

Team. 

 
 Reference was made to whether the credit union reserve would need to be 

increased in the current climate.  It was not envisaged that it would be increased 

at this stage at the Council’s funding was ‘pump prime’ it’s start-up with a view to 

the credit union being self-sustaining.   

 
 Further detail was requested on the capital programme in future reports and it as 

agreed that the Panel would identify the information required so that this could be 

included. 

 
RESOLVED:  (Unanimously) 
 
1. The Panel thanks the Cabinet Member and Section 151 Officer for their detailed 

report and answering the Panel’s questions. 

 

2. The Panel requests further information on the reasons for the reduction in trade 

waste income. 

 

3. The Panel welcomes the inclusion of staffing vacancies within the report and the 

improvement in staff vacancy rates over the previous 12-months. 

 

4. The Panel feels re-assured about the staffing situation in the Gateway customer 

service centre and asks for an update on the recruitment to vacant posts in 

Gateway be provided to the Panel. 

 

5. The Panel asks for more in-depth narrative on progress with the capital projects 

be provided in future reports. 

 
14 Corporate Strategy Refresh 

 
The Leader of the Council presented a report of the Interim Chief Executive updating 
on the Corporate Strategy re-fresh. 
 
It was reported that the COVID-19 crisis was fundamentally changing the lives of our 
residents and the context in which the Council operates.  This was an appropriate 
time to review the current Corporate Strategy to ensure that it remains fit for purpose 
as we go forward.   
 
The Panel raised the following queries/comments which the Leader of the Council 
and Shared Services Lead – Transformation and Partnerships responded to: 
 
 Following questions about the evidence-base for the re-fresh, many national and 

local sources of intelligence were being used from local food banks, Members 

and the community hub. 

Page 5



4 

 

 
Scrutiny Budget and Performance Panel Monday 3 August 2020 

 

 
 The key differences from the corporate strategy agreed earlier in the year was 

around capturing the learning and approach that had worked successfully in 

responding to the COVID-19 pandemic with the community hub model, engaging 

with communities and ensuring the services residents needed were provided.   

 
 Suggestions were made around making the re-freshed community strategy plain 

English and user-friendly such as clarifying that ‘exemplary’ means that you are 

the best.   

 
 Following discussions about the next stage of the re-fresh which would be 

streamlined and include outcomes, confirmation was provided that the draft 

would be presented to Scrutiny in the future. 

 
RESOLVED:  (Unanimously) 
 
1. The Panel thanks the Leader and Shared Services Lead for their report and 

answering the Panel’s questions. 

 

2. The Panel welcomes the re-fresh of the Corporate Strategy. 

 

3. The Panel looks forward to considering the draft re-freshed Corporate Strategy 

and performance measures before they are agreed by Full Council.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chair Date 

Page 6



REPORT TO ON 

CABINET 
Wednesday, 16 
September 2020 

 

TITLE PORTFOLIO REPORT OF 

Quarter 1 (April - June) Performance 
Monitoring Report 2020/21 

Leader of the 
Council 

Interim Chief 
Executive 

 
 

Is this report a KEY DECISION (i.e. more than £100,000 or 
impacting on more than 2 Borough wards?) 
 
Is this report on the Statutory Cabinet Forward Plan? 
 
 
Is the request outside the policy and budgetary framework and 
therefore subject to confirmation at full Council?  
This should only be in exceptional circumstances. 
 
Is this report confidential? 
 

No 
 
 
Yes    
 
 
No 
 
 
 
No 
 

 
 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  
 

1. To provide a summary of performance against the Corporate Plan during quarter 1 (April - June) 
2020/21. 

 
PORTFOLIO RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2. The Scrutiny Budget and Performance Panel are asked to consider the report and make 

comments and recommendations to the Cabinet. 
 

3. Cabinet is asked to consider and comment on the report. 
 

REASONS FOR THE DECISION 
 

4. The Council’s performance framework sets out the process for reporting progress against the 

objectives of the Corporate Plan. Robust monitoring ensures that the council continues to 

deliver its priorities and achieves the best outcomes for residents.  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
5. This report presents performance for quarter 1 2020/21, April – June 2020 based on the 

progress of key projects and performance measures outlined within the current Corporate Plan 

2019-2023. 

 

6. During quarter 1, the COVID-19 pandemic and lock down continued to have a significant and 

sustained impact on all residents, businesses and communities.  The council mobilised a highly 

effective and proactive response to protect all aspects of the borough. A summary of activity is 

included at appendix 2. The Covid-19 community response was the operational and financial 

priority throughout quarter 1 however despite this, performance of the corporate plan has been 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



maintained and remains positive with 85% of projects currently on track, exceeding expectations 

or complete. 

 

7. The intelligence and experience gained through the Covid response will shape the approach to 

service delivery moving forward through the refresh of the Corporate Strategy and priorities, to 

be presented to Council for approval in September 2020.  We now have an understanding of 

areas of vulnerability and how we can better support residents and communities to increase 

overall resilience. Six projects have been paused for review pending the refresh and to ensure 

that activity and resource is directed to meeting the needs of residents through the recovery 

phase.  These projects are identified in Appendix 1. 

 

8. Of the remaining 40 projects and activities 85% are performing well. 

 

 

Completed/Closed 

 

Exceeding 

 

On-Track 

 

Off-Track 

12% 3% 70% 15% 

 

Breakdown by Outcome 
    

Excellence, Investment & Financial 

Sustainability 
1 - 4 1 

Health, Wellbeing and Safety 2 - 9 1 

Our People and Communities 2 - 5 2 

Place, Homes and Environment - 1 10 2 

 

9. Of the 10 performance measures available to be reported this quarter, 7 are ‘Exceeding’, 1 is 

‘On-track’ and 2 are ‘Off-track’.    

 

10. The performance indicators off track are: increase in income from commercially operated assets 

and increase in meeting hours which is due to the business and conference centre being closed 

as a result of the pandemic. A full explanation and action plan are provided within the report. 

 

Breakdown by Outcome 
   

Excellence, Investment & Financial 

Sustainability 
5 1 2 

Health, Wellbeing and Safety - - - 

Our People and Communities 1 - - 

Place, Homes and Environment 1 - - 

 

11. The report provides a summary of all activities that support each of the outcomes in the 

Corporate Plan along with a summary of performance and project delivery. Where activity is off-

track, an explanation and action plan is provided.  

 

12. A summary of performance is provided at Appendix 1 including project status 

 

Page 8



CORPORATE OUTCOMES 
 

13. The report relates to the following corporate priorities: 

 

Excellence, Investment and Financial 
Sustainability 
 

 

Health, Wellbeing and Safety 
 

 

Place, Homes and Environment 
 

 

 
Projects relating to People in the Corporate Plan: 
 

Our People and Communities 
 

 

 
 

SUMMARY OF THE REPORT  

Excellence, Investment & Financial 
Sustainability 
Excellent services and a strong financial position that enables 
us to invest in the right way 
 

 
Achieving the corporate priorities  

14. The Digital to Improve programme accelerated the roll out of devices and systems enabling 

remote and agile based working, which kept the Council functioning throughout the initial peak 

of Covid-19. Over 200 officers are now enabled to work from home with full access to systems 

they would normally be able to access in the office. Microsoft Teams has been made available 

to all staff and all members, which has played a significant role in the introduction of virtual and 

hybrid member and committee meetings. In support of this, 50 iPad Pro devices have been 

given to all Elected Members. The new devices support the move towards a paper light 

environment with access to Microsoft Teams, Outlook and Modern Gov.  Greater digital access 

and mobility enables the provision of even better services for our customers as part of being an 

excellent council. 

 

15. There has been a 12% increase in online transactions in quarter 1 compared to the same time 
last year, accounting for 37% of all contacts.  Residents are becoming more familiar with 
accessing services online achieving the overall aim of having more people using self-service 
channels.  South Ribble and Chorley Council have been working jointly to procure refreshed 
websites for each council. Following approval to award the contract, South Ribble has now 
moved on the implementation phase with a view to introducing the new website in the autumn 
2020, further enabling people to use services online and self-serve at their convenience. 

 

16. The development of Shared Services continued to progress throughout quarter 1. This quarter, 

relocation works for the Civic Centre have been delivered to enable teams to work together in a 

modern working environment. Shared IT systems access has been rolled out to the shared 

Page 9



services senior team and staff. The Digital Governance Board has developed joint information 

security framework and began the review of IT service catalogues in order to identify 

procurement opportunities, align digital thinking and feed into the development of the joint digital 

strategy. Work has begun on the preparation for the Phase 2 business plan for shared services 

which will set out how the councils aim to further extend opportunities to work together more 

effectively and efficiently.  

 

17. Ensuring that the Council delivers value for money, the review of leisure management options 

has been completed together with the strategic business case.  The options outline the 

significant benefits from both a social and economic perspective including how any future 

delivery model could support increased employment and health and wellbeing benefits. The 

leisure management options, and strategic business case options will be presented to cabinet at 

the beginning of August for review and decision on which options are taken forward.   

 

Key Projects  

18. Of the 6 projects under this corporate outcome, 1 is complete, and 4 are ‘On-track’. Customer 

Experience is complete. The projects rated as ‘On-track’ are: 

 Shared Services;  

 Leisure management options; 

 Conference and Business Centre;  

 Implement first year of the Councils 

digital strategy. 

 

19. At the end of the quarter, 1 project was ‘Off-track’, and an action plan is provided below. 

 Review of Surplus Sites 

 

Key Project Status Project description 

Review of the Council's 
Surplus Sites  

The Strategic asset review shall enable the 
Council to identify land and buildings which may 
be under -performing and provide for options to 
enable the asset to perform more effectively or 
look to dispose the asset on the open market. 

Reason for off track and 

action to address: 

A draft assets review report has been received in Quarter 1. 
In August, Cabinet approved the decision to undertake a 
stock condition survey of the Council’s assets.  The tender 
process is now at the stage of being finalised and it is 
expected that a further update will be made to Cabinet in 
December 2020 with the overall completion of the asset 
review expected by March 2021.  

 

Performance Measures 

20. Of the 8 performance measures reported under this outcome, 5 are ‘Exceeding’: % of telephone 

calls answered within 90 seconds; % of calls abandoned before being answered in a quarter; 

Complaints as a % of total contacts to our customer contact centre (Gateway); Complaints 

against the Council Upheld and the Average days to process a new Housing Benefit claim. One 

is ‘on track’: the % of self-service channels access vs phone/face to face.  One measure is ‘off 

track’ as below: 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 10



Key Performance Indicator Baseline / 

Target 

Comparable 

Period 

Quarter 1 

2020/21 
Status 

Increase in income from 

commercially operated 

assets: Business and 

Conference centre 

10% increase 
20% 

(Q1: 2019/20) 
0 

 

Commentary 

The reduction in income generated for the Conference and 

Business Centre this quarter is due to the Covid-19 pandemic.  

The closure by the government of premises such as 

conference centres as well as the closure of the Civic Centre in 

general has simply meant the building has not been open and 

no income taken for this period. 

As restrictions ease, the situation will be reviewed.  

 

Key Performance Indicator Baseline / 

Target 

Comparable 

Period 

Quarter 1 

2020/21 
Status 

Increase in meeting hours in 

the Business and Conference 

Suite 

10% increase 
4% 

(Q1: 2019/20) 
0 

 

Commentary 

As above, the closure by the government of premises such as 

conference centres as well as the closure of the Civic Centre in 

general has simply meant the building has not been open and 

any bookings previously placed have not taken place.  

As restrictions ease, the situation will be reviewed. 

Page 11



Health, Wellbeing and Safety 
Residents are happy, healthy and safe, active and independent 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Achieving the corporate priorities 
21. Progress has been made this quarter in supporting the Council’s objectives to get more people 

engaged in physical activity. The Council’s Active Travel team (Sports Development) has 

launched ‘Cycling in South Ribble’, a webpage which comprises a wide range of information 

relating to cycling which includes: 

 local cycle routes;  

 a directory of South Ribble cycling businesses to visit for a new bike, repairs or parts;  

 training opportunities. 

 

22. Sports Development coaches have delivered ‘Active Streets’ which provides a programme of 

positive activities and engagement through street games and play over the course of a 5-week 

period.  The work is targeted at low income families who are provided with a pack of sports 

equipment and a number of structured activities are delivered with the families supporting 

parents to learn new games to play with children, empowering them to be more active. The 

project began on Broad Green Close, delivered in partnership with the local Youth Support 

Worker at ‘The Base Community Centre’. The activities on Broad Green Close engaged 9 

families on their doorstep. Following positive feedback, the Council seek to replicate the project 

across other streets in the Borough.  

 

23. Improvements and extensions of multi-use pathways across green links has progressed with 

works at Shrugg’s wood having recommenced this quarter (having been delayed due to Covid) 

The planting season has been missed, but the park is set to re-open in October 2020. The Multi-

use pathways are designed to link where people live and work with parks, leisure amenities and 

green spaces. The open access nature of this network allows access for all and promotes 

health and wellbeing through sustainable travel and leisure options. The work to improve access 

to Shruggs wood removes the physical barriers that restrict certain users and provides a 

welcoming open atmosphere.  

 

24. During Covid-19, the government responded with several measures which impacted 

homelessness. Principally this was the suspension of any evictions and the direction to house 

anyone who was homeless, whether this was within the statutory duty or not. As a result, a total 

of 60 households were placed in temporary accommodation. The Housing Options Team 

together with the South Ribble Together Hub, have been working with partners to provide 

positive interventions. As a result, Housing Options has been part of a multi-disciplinary team 

which is able to look at a range of services to provide positive interventions and support.  The 

agencies involved included, Lancashire County Council Social Care, mental and physical health 

services, substance misuse services and probation. 

 

25. It is expected presentations to the service will increase in numbers for those in temporary 

accommodation due to the Government’s recent announcement that additional categories of 

vulnerability have been added to include those more vulnerable to COVID 19. 

 

26. As a result of the work undertaken and the ending of the Covid-19 homeless interventions, 
services within the council are developing a sustainable approach to maintaining the type of 

Page 12



approach to interventions supporting those at risk but fall outside of the statutory duty.  As the 
team moves out of the COVID19 response and back into proactive and preventive work, 
Housing Options is to seek funding through the Government focused on this area.  

 

27. Progress has been made in rephasing the Dementia Action Alliance’s Delivery Plan 2020-21 to 

take account of the impact of the Covid-19. The alliance’s Living Well Guide has been updated 

to ensure that information relating to services and additional support for those impacted by 

Covid-19 with the delivery of monthly Dementia updates through the monthly newsletter and the 

Councils Website. Working towards a more dementia friendly high-street, the Alliance has been 

working with businesses to begin on virtual dementia friends’ sessions. The first of these 

sessions was delivered to businesses from the Business Before Breakfast network in June.   

 

Key Projects  

28. Of the 12 projects under this corporate outcome, 2 are closed, 9 are ‘On-track’.  Activities and 

events for people of all ages and MH2K have progressed as far as they can under their current 

scopes and have now been closed.  MH2K will be taken forward in its next stages as part of the 

Councils implementation of the Strategic Review of Community Involvement, where the 

Neighbourhoods team will be developing a project to take forward implementation of key 

recommendations from the final report.  
 

29. The projects rated as ‘On-track’ are: 

 South Ribble Dementia Action Alliance;  

 Open space sports and recreation;  

 Improving our existing leisure centres;  

 Reduce the number of Homeless 

 First class advice services 

 Interact with the Council digitally;  

 Community safety to tackle crime and disorder; 

 South Ribble Partnership;  

 Mind the Gap 

 
 

30. At the end of the quarter, 1 project is ‘Off-track’ and an action plan is provided below: 

 Green Links;  
  

Key Project Status Project description 

Green Links 
 

The Green Links project will promote and develop new 
green corridors where people can walk and cycle safely. 
These Green corridors will also promote biodiversity, 
ecology and improve Air Quality of a given area.  

Reason for off track and 

action to address: 

Due to furlough there have been delays on the work for Green 

Links. However, within the quarter work has recommenced on  

Shruggs Wood, and will be completed by end of quarter 2, though 

the planting season has been missed. 

 
Approximately 60% of planned works for Howick – Penwortham 
Holme Ribble Corridor should be achieved within year.  As a result, 
a revised programme taking into account in year underspend will be 
factored into specification enhancements for Green links 
infrastructure linked to the Environment Agency flood defence 
program (Phase 1 and 2) along the river corridor including Ribble 
sidings scheme. 
 
Work on the Leyland Loop, where land is in the Council’s ownership 
has in the majority been completed. Dialog is continuing with 
Lancashire County Council (LCC) and Cuerden Valley Park Trust 
(CVPT) together with other significant landowners to bring forward 
less complex schemes that could be completed within year. A 
clearer understanding of the likely outturn will be available at the 
end of quarter 2. 

Page 13



Performance Measures 

31. There are no performance measures under this corporate outcome due to be reported this 

quarter.  

 

Our People & Communities 
Strong and active communities where people are engaged and 
have a voice. 
 

Achieving the corporate priorities 
32. Within this quarter the revised Council Tax Scheme (CTS) for 2020/21, came into effect and 

approximately one third (2,382) of households have been removed from paying the £3.50 a 

week charge, delivering on the commitment to people paying less in fees to the Council.  There 

has also been a reduction in the fees for garden waste collection.  Compared with the number of 

subscriptions last year, there have been 2,123 additional subscriptions, indication that the 

reduction may have made more amenable to households, which may be for a number of 

reasons.   

 

33. Recruitment for the Community Involvement team, whilst initially delayed due to Covid-19, has 

now moved forward with job descriptions and adverts approved for release. These roles will 

provide the capacity to support the implementation of the recommendations of the community 

involvement review which was completed earlier this year the interviews will take place on the 

3rd and 4th of September 2020, with the expectation that the individuals will be appointed by 

October 2020. 

 

34. Tempo who deliver Time Credits have been working with South Ribble Partnership and the 

Council to reshape outputs to enable the outcomes and objectives of the project to be met. As a 

result of the rescoping, the benefit area of the project has been expanded from Penwortham 

and Leyland to cover the whole borough. Faced with limited access to community groups, the 

focus has been over the past quarter to engage with community organisations and partners to 

assess the impact on the voluntary and community sector, mapping the various groups and 

needs.  Approximately 70 community groups have been identified through an initial mapping 

exercise. Over the coming months, work will be undertaken to get them listed on to a new local 

volunteer and community platform Tempo Communities’ which is open to any groups 

irrespective of them being a member of time credits.  

 

Key Projects  

35. Of the 9 projects under this corporate outcome, 2 are complete, 5 are ‘On-track’. The complete 

projects are Review Community Involvement approach and Revised Council Tax Support 

Scheme for 2020-21.  

 

36. The projects rated as on-track are: 

 My Neighbourhood Plans Gain  

 Accreditation as a Living Wage Employer  

 Apprentice Factory Phase 2 

 Community Bank/Credit Union  

 Council's Approach to Volunteering and 

Active Citizens 

 

37. At the end of the quarter, 2 are ‘Off-track’ and an action plan is provided below: 

 Member Induction Programme and Member Development Programme; 

Page 14



 Develop a Youth Council. 

 

Key Project Status Project description 

Member Induction 

Programme and 

Member Development 

Programme  

The Council’s Corporate Plan includes a project to 
bring forward a comprehensive Member 
Development programme, aligning with the first 
level of the North West Employers’ Organisation 
Member Development Charter. 

Reason for off track 

and action to address: 

It has not been possible to provide the usual training and 
development programme for Members and the Member Development 
Steering Group has been unable to meet due to Covid-19.  During 
lockdown: 
 Several online development opportunities have been made 

available to Members; 
 A written weekly update provided to Members and Democratic 

Services has made regular telephone calls to check-in with 
Members; 

 New iPads and appropriate Covid-19 safe training and guidance 
has been provided to Members on their iPads. 

 
A key piece of work towards achieving the Member Development 
Charter has been personal development review meetings with 
individual Members.  However, as the model is to meet face to face, 
this has not been possible. Telephone personal development review 
meetings are currently being piloted.  Arrangements are now being 
made to hold a virtual Member Development Steering Group to help 
shape our future offering with regards Member training and 
development.  Investigations are taking place to see if the personal 
development review process could be developed into a web-based 
tool to assist Members.  We are also investigating other online and e-
learning packages that Members might benefit from. 

 

Key Project Status Project description 

Develop a Youth 

Council  

Community involvement is at the heart of the way in 

which the Council undertakes its business. A key 

stakeholder group is young people and ensuring 

they are actively involved in shaping their 

communities, engaged with the Council and play 

their part in improving the Borough. This project will 

look at how best we can engage with young people 

to ensure we strengthen the voice of young people. 

Reason for off track 

and action to address: 

The development of a Youth Council has been impacted by Covid-19 

while resources were redeployed and recruitment to the community 

involved posts delayed. The new Community Development posts are 

expected to be appointed to by October 2020 and work will be 

accelerated to engage with young people to co-produce and design 

how the Youth Council looks and works.  

 

Performance Measures 

38. One indicator was due to be reported under this outcome, the number of people removed from 
the minimum £3.50 per week contribution (Council Tax Support Scheme) is ‘Exceeding’. A full 
performance summary is included at Appendix 1. 

Page 15



Place, Homes & Environment 
Our green spaces are valued, and development is well 
managed. 

Achieving the corporate priorities 
39. The Council has a priority to provide good quality, secure and affordable homes for the 

residents of South Ribble to live in. A full planning application was submitted to the Council's 

Planning Department in May 2020 for the development of 15 affordable homes at the former 

McKenzie Arms site. The application will be considered for determination at the Council's 

Planning Committee. 

 

40. The Council has carried out refurbishment works to three playgrounds; these include facilities 

for predominately younger children at Worden Park and the full refurbishment of the 

playgrounds at Leadale Green and Seven Stars Road. This refurbishment programme will 

continue over the coming months and will include the following sites; Hurst Grange Park, 

Penwortham, Bellis Way, Walton-le-Dale and Haig Avenue, Leyland. 

 

41. The scope of the Leyland Master plan is dependent on the bid for the Town Deal.  The funding 

round has extended its timeline for delivery and South Ribble Borough Council are currently 

working with the newly established Leyland Town Board on preparing a Leyland Town 

Investment Plan (TIP) to be submitted to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 

Government (MHCLG) in October 2020. Once submission of the TIP to MHCLG and if 

successful, further work will be undertaken to develop a full business case for the projects within 

the TIP. The emerging key projects in the TIP include the following: 

 The BASE – a skill and enterprise hub in the town centre providing a space for local 
people and businesses to learn, work and grow together.  

 An expanded regeneration of the existing market building – part of the land will also be 
used to support the expansion and/ regeneration of the existing market building 
improving its quality and providing a leisure offer that Leyland does not currently have.  

 A new town square – this is linked to wider a public realm investment and will provide a 
focal point within the town centre, linking the BASE and regenerated Market Building.  

 A replacement high quality car park including electric charging point and photo-voltaic 
panels. The existing car park will then become the development site for the BASE 
building. 

 New commercial space including food/drink and evening uses to diversify this part of the 
Town Centre, along with new Town Centre residential opportunities.  

 
 

Projects Paused for Review 

42. A number of projects under this priority have been paused for a full review either due to the 

impact of Covid restrictions and or co-dependency on partners who are involved in delivery.  

The projects will be revised and rescoped to ensure that they are deliverable and meet 

future priorities. 

 
 

Page 16



 
Key Projects 

43. Of the 19 projects under this corporate outcome,1 is ‘Exceeding’, 10 are ‘On-track’, and 6 

have been paused for review. The project that is exceeding is Plant 110,000 trees in South 

Ribble.  

 

44. The projects rated as on-track are: 

 Carbon Neutral by 2030; 

 Single use plastics;  

 Scope and prepare masterplans for 

Leyland, Bamber Bridge and 

Penwortham town centres; 

 Review the Local Plan; 

 River Ribble Green Link;  

 Provide quality homes that people can 

afford to live in; 

 Bring Worden Hall back in to use;  

 Invest and develop our parks and play 

areas; 

 Manage the rate of delivery of new 

homes and commercial floor space;  

 Prepare strategy for supporting new 

and small businesses. 

 

45. The six projects that have been paused for review are: 

 Prepare and implement a Central 

Lancashire Economic Strategy;  

 Implement Phase 2 of the 

Employment and Skills Plan 

(Cuerden); 

 Develop a programme for festivals 

and events, with at least 1 music 

festival; 

 Review the projects listed in the City 

Deal Business and Delivery Plan;  

 Ensure our parks and existing 

cherished local open spaces can be 

protected. 

 

At the end of this quarter, 2 are ‘Off-track’ and an action plan is provided below: 

 Borough's Air Quality Action Plan; 

 Private Sector Stock Condition Survey. 

 

Key Project Status Project description 

Borough's Air Quality Action 

Plan  

Following the Declaration of 5 Air Quality 

Management areas, South Ribble Borough 

Council has produced an Air Quality Action Plan, 

detailing the actions that the local authority and its 

partners will undertake to maintain and improve 

air quality. 

Reason for off track and 

action to address: 

This project is progressing in a limited manner, some 
planned work has been hindered by the national response to 
the Covid-19 pandemic. This has included working with 
schools and colleges, anti-idling campaign, and the 
promotion of air quality and work with Lancashire County 
Council on curriculum-based activities. As schools and 
colleges return, and when Lancashire County Council public 
health resources allow, we will resume activities in these 
areas. Officers have been continuing to work in partnership 
with several other local authorities across the County to 
secure external funding for the provision of several electric 
vehicles charging points across the Borough. The 
implementation timescale was the end August 2020; 
however, it is anticipated that this will have to be extended 
due to Covid-19.  
 

Page 17



 

Key Project Status Project description 

Private Sector Stock 

Condition Survey  

Using the 2012 stock condition survey as a 
baseline, the 2019 survey will be evaluated ad 
analysed with a series of recommendations for 
changes to be made to the council’s Housing 
Assistance Policy, ensuring that financial 
assistance is targeted at the areas identified to 
qualifying Owner Occupied Households. 

Reason for off track and 

action to address: 

This project was deferred earlier this year, but a plan is in 
pace to report back to Cabinet in November.  The report to 
Cabinet will be focused around amending the assistance 
policy to widen the number of properties that are eligible for 
home improvement grants. 
 

 

Performance Measures 

46. One indicator was due to be reported under this outcome, the number of new residential homes 
(per annum) is ‘Exceeding’. A full performance summary is included at Appendix 1. 

CONSULTATION CARRIED OUT AND OUTCOME OF CONSULTATION 
 

47. N/A 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 
 

48. N/A 

AIR QUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

49. N/A 

RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

50. As reported in the previous performance monitoring report the key risk to the Corporate Plan 

delivery is the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic and the government guidance/restrictions. 

However, in mitigating this risk the Council is taking proactive steps on a recovery plan and will 

be aligning the Corporate Plan and the projects to ensure that they are relevant and respond to 

the changing environment that both the Council, its partners and residents find themselves in 

 

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPACT 
 

51. Equality and Diversity is embedded within the Corporate Plan and how the council acts. 

Ongoing work around reducing inequalities, improvements to the outdoor environment and 

reducing the financial burden on residents are all demonstrable ways in which the council seeks 

to meet its equality and diversity duties and objectives.  

 

COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER 

 

52. This report provides Cabinet with an update for Quarter 1 of performance against the 

programmes and projects which were agreed by Council. The funding for these projects was 

reflected in the 2020/21 budget and MTFS (Medium Term Financial Strategy) which was 

approved by Council in February 2020. Some projects identified within the report are also 

dependent on successful bids for external funding such as the Towns Deal and Hurst Grange 

Park. 

Page 18



 

53. The first budget monitoring report for 2020/21 is a separate item on this agenda. The budget 

monitoring report sets out the key outturn variances to budget which are anticipated and reflects 

some of the financial implications of the improvements and reductions in performance 

highlighted in this Quarter 1 report. The report also highlights the additional funding received 

and costs incurred during Covid-19 including the additional support provided for housing those 

in need of temporary accommodation. 

 

COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER 
 

54. It is important of course that the council reports openly and transparently on how it is performing 
against the objectives in the Corporate Plan. This is important for public confidence. Members of 
the public – and indeed Members – need to have reassurance that targets are being delivered 
on. This is more true than ever in these COVID 19 affected days.  

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

 
55.  Corporate Plan 2019-23 (Approved September 2019) 

 
APPENDICES  

 
 Appendix 1 – Performance Data Quarter 1 (2020/21) 
 Appendix 2 – Covid 19 Response  
 
Gary Hall 
Interim Chief Executive 
 

Report Author: Telephone: Date: 

Howard Anthony, Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships Manager  
Michael Johnson, Strategic Corporate and 
Partnership Officer 

01772 625339 10/08/2020 

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 
 

Performance Data  

 

 

Quarter 1 2020-21 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 21



Appendix 1 

Key Information 
This report forms part of the appendices of the “Performance Monitoring Report” update to the Scrutiny 

Budget and Performance Panel,  and Cabinet on the progress at the end of Quarter 1 (April - June 2020) of 

the Corporate Plan 2019-23. This report reflects the changes to the Corporate Plan as approved 

September 2019 and outlines the performance broken down by four sections (Outcomes): 

 Excellence, Investment and Financial Sustainability; 
 Health, Wellbeing and Safety; 
 Place, Homes and Environment; 
 Our People and Communities   

Within each section is a summary of all activities and their performance status at the end of Quarter 1.  

Performance Key 

Symbol Determination 

 

If we are doing well then it is 
Exceeding. Where a project or 
task has been achieved ahead 
of the due date set or a measure 
has achieved beyond its target. 

 

It is On-track where a project or 
task will be delivered on the due 
date set or a measure is within 
its agreed targets 

 

It is Off-track where a project or 
task has not met its required 
due dates, or a measure has not 
met its targets 

 

Completed/Closed: project has 
been completed, meeting 
milestones and actions. 

 

The Key Performance Indicators (KPI) for Quarter 1 display progress against the outcomes of the 

Corporate Plan on Health, Excellence, Communities and Environment. 

Trend Determination Note 

 

This shows that the reported figure has increased 
since it was last reported.  

The trend key shows how a 
measure is performing against 
its previous reported figure. The 
colour of the item details 
whether the direction is 
negative, positive.  These are 
the same colours as used on the 
performance key for succeeding 
and off track.  

 

This shows that the reported figure has decreased 
since it was last reported 

 

This shows that a measure has stayed the same 
and not moved 

Page 22



Appendix 1 
 

 

Our Key Performance Indicators:  
Key Performance 
Indicator 

Baseline / 
Target 

Comparable 
Period  

Quarter 1 
2020/21 

Status Trend 

% of self-service 
channels access vs 
phone/face to face 

40% 
(2020/21) 

22% 
(Q4: 2019/20) 

37% 
  

Increase in income from 
commercially operated 
assets: Business and 
Conference centre 

10% Increase 
20% 

(Q1: 2019/20) 
0% 

  

Increase in meeting 
hours in the Business 
and Conference Suite 

10% Increase 
4% 

(Q1: 2019/20) 
0% 

  

 

Service Level 
Indicators 

Baseline / 
Target 

Comparable 
Period 

Quarter 1 
2020/21 

Status Trend 

% of telephone calls 
answered within 90 
seconds 

40% 
(2020/21) 

61% 
(Q4: 2019/20) 

73% 
  

% of calls abandoned 
before being answered 
in a quarter 

18% 
(2020/21) 

11% 
(Q4: 2019/20) 

9% 
  

Complaints as a % of 
total contacts to our 
customer contact 
centre (Gateway) 

2% 
(2020/21) 

0% 
(Q4: 2019/20) 

0% 
  

Complaints against the 
Council Upheld 

No Target 27 
(Q4: 2019/20)  

0 
  

Average days to 
process a new Housing 
Benefit claim 

19 days 
16.6 days 

(Q4:2019/20) 
13 days 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Excellence, Investment & Financial 

Sustainability 
Excellent services and a strong financial position that enables 

us to invest in the right way 

 

Page 23



    

Quarter 1 Project Status   
 

 

 2019-20 2020-21 

What we will do 
Quarter 4 
Jan -Mar 

Quarter 1 
Apr – Jun 

EIFS01 – Customer Experience  
  

EIFS02 – Shared Services  
  

EIFS03 – Conference and Business 
Centre    

EIFS04 – Leisure Management Options 
  

EIFS05 – Implement first year of the 
Councils Digital Strategy   

EIFS06 -Review of the Council’s Surplus 
Sites   

Page 24



Appendix 1 

 

Our Key Performance Indicators 
 

There are no performance measures to report under this corporate priority this quarter. 
 

Quarter 1 Project Status   
 2019-20 2020-21 

What we will do 
Quarter 4 
Jan -Mar 

Quarter 1 
Apr – Jun 

HWS01 - South Ribble Dementia Action Alliance  
  

HWS02 - Open Space Sports and Recreation 
  

HWS03 - Green Links  
  

HWS04 -Improving our Existing Leisure Centres 
  

HWS05 - Activities and Events for People of All Ages 
 

Closed 

HWS06 - Interact with the Council Digitally  
  

HWS07 - Community Safety to tackle Crime and 
Disorder   

HWS08 - South Ribble Partnership  
  

HWS09 - MH2K 
 

Closed 

HWS10 - Reduce the Number of Homeless 
  

HWS11 - Mind the Gap 
  

HWS12 - First Class Advice Services 
  

Health, Wellbeing and Safety 
Residents are happy, healthy and safe, active and independent 

Page 25



Appendix 1 

 

Our Key Performance Indicators 

 

Quarter 1 Project Status   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Our People & Communities 
Strong and active communities where people are engaged 

and have a voice. 

 

Key Performance Indicator 
Baseline / 

Target 
Comparable 

period  
Quarter 1 
2020/21 

Status Trend 

Number of people removed 
from the minimum £3.50 per 
week contribution (Council 

Tax Support Scheme) 

1900 
(2020/21) 

- 2382 
 

- 

 2019-20 2020-21 

 What we will do 

Quarter 
4 

Jan -
Mar 

Quarter 1 
Apr – Jun 

OPC01 - Review Community Involvement approach 
  

OPC02 - My Neighbourhood Plans. 
  

OPC03 - Revised Council Tax Support Scheme for 
2020-21 

  

OPC04 - Community Bank/Credit Union 

Not 
Started 

(July 
2020) 

 

OPC05 - Member Induction Programme and Member 
Development Programme   

OPC06 - Develop a Youth Council 
  

OPC07 - Gain Accreditation as a Living wage 
Employer   

OPC08 - Council's Approach to Volunteering and 
Active Citizens   

OPC09 - Apprentice Factory Phase 2 
  

Page 26



Appendix 1 
 

 

Our Key Performance Indicators 

 

Quarter 1 Project Status   

Place, Homes & Environment 
Our green spaces are valued, and development is well managed. 

Key Performance Indicator 
Baseline 
/ Target 

Comparable 
Period 

Quarter 1 
2020/21 

Status Trend 

Number of new residential 
homes (per annum). 

328 
(2019/20) 

417 
(2018/19) 

357 
(2019/20)   

 2019-20 2020-21 

What we will do 
Quarter 4 
Jan -Mar 

Quarter 1 
Apr – Jun 

PHE01 - Develop a strategy and action plan to 
halt overall loss of England’s biodiversity  

Pause & 
Review 

PHE02 - Plant 110,000 trees in South Ribble 
  

PHE03 - Carbon Neutral by 2030 
  

PHE04 - Single Use plastics 
  

PHE05 - Borough's Air Quality Action Plan 
  

PHE06 - Bring Worden Hall back in to use 
  

PHE07 - Invest and develop our parks and play 
areas   
PHE08 - Develop a Programme for festivals and 
events, with at least 1 music festival  

Pause & 
Review 

PHE09 - Ensure our parks and existing cherished 
local open spaces can be protected  

Pause & 
Review 

PHE10 - Manage the rate of delivery of new 
homes and commercial floor space   
PHE11 - Scope and prepare masterplans for 
Leyland, Bamber Bridge and Penwortham town 
centres   

PHE12 - Implement Phase 2 of the Employment 
and Skills Plan (Cuerden) 
 
 

 

Pause & 
Review 

Page 27



    

 
 2019-20 2020-21 

What we will do 
Quarter 4 
Jan -Mar 

Quarter 1 
Apr – Jun 

PHE13 - Prepare strategy for supporting new and 
small businesses   

PHE14 - Review the projects listed in the City 
Deal Business and Delivery Plan 2017- 20 

 

Pause & 
Review 

PHE15 - Review the Local Plan 
  

PHE16 - River Ribble Green Link 
  

PHE17 - Prepare and implement a Central 
Lancashire Economic Strategy  

Pause & 
Review 

PHE18 - Provide quality homes that people can 
afford to live in   

PHE19 - Private Sector Stock Condition Survey 
  

Page 28



Appendix 2 
 

Supplementary Item 

–  

 

Covid 19 Response 

 

 

Quarter 1 2020-21 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 29



    

 

Page 30



Appendix 2 
The Council faced the unprecedented challenge of Covid-19, but through a team effort was able to continue 
to key and additional services.  Digital and technology acted as a major enabler to sustain existing services 
and implement additional service provision and new ways of working. Remote working solutions enabled 
officers to remain responsive to local need and was instrumental in establishing a Covid-19 specific contact 
centre, online self-serve and data management processes.   
 
Digital also re-established critical council decision making functions including member committee meetings 
with the first virtual committee on 4th June.  Following successful tests, a hybrid virtual and physical 
committee model was established enabling the meeting of Council to take place on 22nd July.  
 

South Ribble Together: Community  
The ‘Community’ support was established in just over a week, 

and between April – June at least 39 employees were 

redeployed from across the Council, to positions outside their 

substantive roles to. Total staffing levels fluctuated but 

employees who were willing, were redeployed from across 

different teams illustrated to the right.  

 Total no. individuals we have sent postcards 
/ letters to 

13,800 

 Total no. individuals we have contacted via 
outbound calls 

6,083 

 Total no. individuals who contacted us  2,826 
 Total no. individuals that have received 

support 
882 

 Total no. food parcels requested and issued 722 

  Total no. individuals that have received 
support on multiple occasions 

376 

 Total no. individual prescription collections 296 

 Total no. repeat prescription collections 52 

 

South Ribble Together: Business Support  
Investment and Skills and Revenues and 

Benefits focused on providing the range of 

business grants made available from the 

government.  would receive grants from the 

government.   

This included a proactive approach to driving 

businesses through the application process and 

to date over £19 million pounds has been 

distributed.  

 

Council Tax and Rates  
The gateway and, revenues and benefits teams also 

focused on responding to Covid-19. During the period the teams: 

 Responded to over 8,000 calls to Council Tax; 

 Completed over 5,200 Council Tax scripts, of which over 1,200 related to making/altering payment 

arrangements; 

 Dealt with an increase in caseload of the number of working age claimants needing support from 

3,273 to 3,771 (498 additional claims) 

 Supported retail properties entitled to relief with an increase from 219 properties granted approx. 

£904,605 to 430 properties granted approx. £12,700,000 (211 additional reliefs). 

Page 31



    

 

Page 32


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of meeting Monday, 3 August 2020 of Scrutiny Budget and Performance Panel
	5 Period 1 (April - June) Quarterly Performance Monitoring Report 2020/21
	Appendix 1 for Quarter 1 (April - June) Performance Monitoring Report 2020/21
	Appendix 2 -  Covid 19 Response


